Cover

Power User

This page intentionally left blank

# Table of Contents

	About This Guide	4
	Who Should Attend?	4
	Objectives	4
1.	Teamwork without boundaries	5
	Sign in with Office 365	5
	Advanced Microsoft Teams scenarios	10
	Advanced Whiteboard for collaboration	14
2.	Microsoft Office and other apps	19
	Build dynamic PowerPoint presentations	19
	Edit and markup documents and contracts in Word	23
	Using Surface Hub apps for collaboration	26
	Business apps designed for a large screen	29
3.	Work with Teams to access content anywhere	
	Project workflows in Teams	
	Basic Surface Hub troubleshooting	42

# **About This Guide**

Hello and welcome to the Microsoft Surface Hub training guide. This guide includes detailed information for Surface Hub power users as well as tips and tricks to take meetings, presentations, and brainstorming sessions to the next level. The guide can also be used as a reference after class to review the skills taught in Office 365 and Microsoft Teams.

## Who Should Attend?

This course is intended for enterprise power users who frequently attend or lead group meetings in person or remotely within the organization as well as those who ideate, using the large screen experience, to become more collaborative and engaged with their team.

## **Objectives**

In this course, you will learn how to take full advantage of Surface Hub for team collaboration and productivity. The training will not only teach you how to connect to Office 365 and manage your files and content, it will also show you how to apply Surface Hub and Microsoft Teams to your own business workflows and prepare you for a variety of meeting scenarios. The first 2 hours are spent learning about the advanced features and tools available on Surface Hub. Then you'll learn how to apply those features to business and collaboration workflows in your industry.

You will also learn about the key features of Surface Hub management including:

- **Teamwork without boundaries** Enable teamwork anywhere on an advanced platform for remote team meetings and fluid team collaboration
- Microsoft Teams A platform for true team collaboration, messaging, meetings, and files
- Microsoft Office This includes Word, Excel, PowerPoint, and OneDrive for storage
- Microsoft Whiteboard Shared infinite canvas brainstorming sessions available on any device
- **Basic Troubleshooting** Meeting best practices and how to fix the most common issues and minimize meeting downtime

# **1.** Teamwork without boundaries

# Lesson Objectives

After completing this lesson, you will be able to:

- Sign in with Office 365 to access your meetings and files
- Use Microsoft Teams on any device to take meetings and content anywhere
- Use Microsoft Whiteboard to share, organize and brainstorm with smarter tools

# Sign in with Office 365

Microsoft Surface Hub is designed to be used by anyone and can be used in many different ways. Meetings and brainstorming sessions can be very agenda driven or more dynamic and fluidly evolving and anywhere in between.

One way to simplify the process of bringing content to a session or sharing content during or after a session is to utilize the Sign in feature to Sign in to Office 365 with your Work or School account. This allows you to access all of the content you work with all the time as well as any meetings you have been invited to right from the Surface Hub.



After you have signed in, you'll see your scheduled meetings and recently accessed OneDrive files on the My meetings and files tab of the Start menu.

Signing in to Office 365 will also add your account to the Office apps on Surface Hub for the duration of your session which means that any new files you create during your session will automatically be saved to OneDrive and you won't lose any unsaved work.



You can start the sign in process right from the Welcome screen.

You can also sign in from the Start menu.

<ul> <li>₩ Home</li> <li>₩ All apps</li> <li>My meetings and files</li> <li>End session</li> </ul>	See your online meetings and recent files
You can also ope My meetings au	en the Start menu and select nd files and then Sign in

If you have a scheduled meeting on the Surface Hub, it will display your name, or you can choose to enter a different account.



Select or enter your account name and then enter your password. After signing in, you'll see your meetings and recent files on the Start menu.

#### Using OneDrive to save and share files

OneDrive is your personal file storage in the cloud which allows you to access your files anywhere and share them with anyone. With real-time co-authoring you and your team can work on a file at the same time and see changes as they are made.



The sharing feature built into Microsoft Office allows you to easily share files you are working on with team members. If a file is already shared, open OneDrive and browse your files and files that have been shared with you by other people.



## Try real-time co-authoring with your teammates

Take a few minutes and give real-time co-authoring a try with Surface Hub. This is one way to save time normally spent sending revisions back and forth.

## Joining internal and external meetings with Surface Hub

Most Surface Hubs in the enterprise are configured to be accept internal meeting invitations only, meaning that only employees in your organization can invite a Surface Hub to a meeting.

There are often instances when you may be invited to a meeting by someone outside your organization. This is the best time to utilize the Sign in to Office 365 feature on Surface Hub. If a Surface Hub is not already scheduled for a meeting it will show that it is available on the Welcome screen. This means that anyone is able to walk up and start using it to collaborate or start a meeting.

You could join the meeting from your PC or laptop and invite the Surface Hub to the meeting in progress. But if you don't carry your PC with you, you can use the Sign in feature to access your calendar even faster.

After signing in with your Office 365 account, the Surface Hub calendar will still show that it is available, but the Start menu > My meetings and files will allow you to access your own personal calendar and join meetings from the Surface Hub as if it was invited to your meeting.

Keep in mind that if the meeting is organized by someone outside your organization that the Surface Hub may need to be admitted into the meeting first.

## Try joining a meeting from your own calendar using Surface Hub

Create or locate a meeting that you have been invited to and try joining that meeting without inviting the Surface Hub to the meeting.

# **Advanced Microsoft Teams scenarios**

With remote working and geographically separated teams on the rise in organizations around the world we need tools that enable face-to-face conversations and continuous knowledge sharing to get work done.

Microsoft Teams is a collaboration platform that uses advanced communication tools to bring ideas to life and its built into the core fabric of Surface Hub.

### Continuous knowledge sharing with face-to-face calls

Teams allows you to stay connected with anyone you work with. What better way to truly connect and share inspiration and ideas with remote colleagues than with ultra high quality video calls between devices? Now you can take those calls anywhere with the Surface Hub rolling cart and battery power. Break out of traditional meetings and get creative anytime. When ideas spark, talk to the people who can make it happen.

On Surface Hub, you don't need to schedule a meeting, you can make calls quickly by using the search feature to locate colleagues by name and see their presence status before you call.



Working with Teams on a PC and want to include the Surface Hub? There are several ways to bring the Hub into the conversation. You can make a call or even add the Hubs in your office to your contacts list for easy access.

< >	Ľ	Search or type a command	🛃 – 🗆 ×
Activity	Speed dial	Speed dial	
Tearns Meetings	() History	Speed dat	ស៊ី Add speed dial ស៊ី New group
Calls			
Files	Make a call		
Apps Help	00		

If you're in a meeting already, you can also add the Hub to call in progress the same way you add a teammate. Move between devices fluidly to suit the needs of the session.

#### Get comfortable with Teams on devices to expand the possibilities

With Microsoft Teams on Surface Hub, PC, and mobile devices you have access to all of your content and meetings as you work throughout the day.

#### Try this:

Sign in to view your meetings and files using Office 365 on your Surface Hub.

Then open Microsoft Edge and browse to <a href="https://teams.microsoft.com">https://teams.microsoft.com</a>

In Edge, you have access to all of your teams, channels, tabs, conversations, group chats, and files.



Teams on mobile devices allows you to join meetings and chat on the go. Never miss an important meeting or call again.

You can also join meetings and use the mobile device camera as shared content in the meeting for product reviews and field technician reports.



# Advanced Whiteboard for collaboration

In the End User training course, you learned how to use the basic features of the Whiteboard to draw and get ideas onto the canvas. Now its time to look at some of the advanced ways that you can utilize the Whiteboard for almost any creative process.

### Sharing, organizing, and accessing whiteboards

After signing in with your Office 365 account, you have access to all of your whiteboards stored in the cloud. Whiteboards can be named so you can find them easier. Use names that help you remember what the whiteboard contains.

Press the < button in the top left corner of the Whiteboard app to view all of your whiteboards. Your most recently accessed whiteboards will be displayed first in the list.



Press the ... button to display the menu of options.



Add or edit the name of the whiteboard by pressing the pen icon and typing a name.

You can also share whiteboards with your colleagues, export an image of the whiteboard as an image file attached to an email, and delete a whiteboard from your list. Deleting a whiteboard deletes it for everyone it is shared with and it cannot be recovered so only delete whiteboards when you are sure you no longer need them.

## Working with images, shapes, text, and backgrounds

Microsoft Whiteboard includes many built in features designed to enhance your creativity and brainstorming sessions.

Whiteboard content can come from almost anywhere, the only limitation is your imagination. Bring in pictures and add ink, move and resize as you go.

Use Bing image search to search the web for images based on keywords or phrases and use the images as creative fuel or backgrounds for ink.



Images that have been added to the whiteboard can be stacked and moved as a stack around the canvas.



You can also turn your ink into shapes and tables as you draw to make flow charts and diagrams easily. Use the options menu in the top right corner to access Ink to Shape and Ink to Table.



Insert text into the whiteboard by typing or writing text.



Change the whiteboard background to various grids and line styles along with colors to give a frame of reference for scale drawings and other ideas.



### Brainstorming sessions with smarter tools

Ink is now smarter than ever and with intelligent tools ink can transform how you collaborate every day. If you use traditional whiteboards in your organization, you can bring in your pictures of those whiteboards and transform them into digital ink in Microsoft Whiteboard using Smart Ink.



# Let's Review

In this lesson, you learned how to:

- Sign in with Office 365 to access your meetings and files
- Use Microsoft Teams on any device to take meetings and content anywhere
- Use Microsoft Whiteboard to share, organize and brainstorm with smarter tools

# 2. Microsoft Office and other apps

# Lesson Objectives

After completing this lesson, you will be able to:

- Build dynamic PowerPoint presentations and use markup to make presentations engaging
- Edit and markup documents and contracts in Word
- Use Surface Hub apps in new ways
- Utilize line-of-business apps designed for the large screen

## **Build dynamic PowerPoint presentations**

One of the most common reasons that people meet is to share information. Microsoft PowerPoint is one of the best ways to share engaging content. With Office apps on Surface Hub you can create, edit, present, and annotate on presentations with ease.

### Create or edit presentations with ink and images

PowerPoint on Surface Hub includes all the tools you need to create engaging presentations. The ribbon tabs across the top organize the available commands into related groups for easy navigation. Whether you are editing an existing presentation or creating a new slideshow from a blank slate you'll find useful ways to get work done.



Use the tools on the Insert tab to place objects into the current slide such as pictures, shapes and smart art.



Use the ink tools to mark up and add notes to slides as you work. This is a great way to storyboard ideas for a new project. You can rearrange slides in the slideshow by dragging slides to the desired location and keep everything organized. Use Ink to Shape to transform your drawn shapes into PowerPoint shape objects that can contain text.



Select a shape to display the Shape ribbon tab with options for the selected shape. Objects can be placed in front of or behind other objects on the slide. Shapes can also be rotated by dragging the rotation handle icon that appears on the shape when selected.

Presentation (1) - PowerPoint		
	Presentation (1)	
File Home Insert Draw Design Transitions	Animations Side Show Review View Stage V 🔬 Fill 🔀 Outline 📴 Forwards 🖻 Backwards 🔁 Group 🖄 Rotate 😭 Size and Position 🖏 Alt Text	오 포 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
1 Second Academic Second Second Secon	Built for touch	
	PowerPoint works on any touch device. It's easy to make changes with just a selection.	
3	Try it:	
	Double-tap the text inside the square and choose Copy Formatting.	
S executive	2 Double-tap the text in the circle and choose Paste Formatting.	
	TEXT	
		🗐 Notes 🖵 Comments

The options on the Picture tab appear when you select an image or picture on the slide. Use these tools to add picture effects and styles or crop the image to the right size for your slide.

Presentation (1) - PossePoint	
Presentation (1)	
File Home Inset Draw Design Transitions Animations Side Show Review View Petawe 15% Styles 🔐 Richard Effects 🃴 Forwards 🔂 Group 🖄 Rotate 🔯 Group 🖄 Rotate 🔯 Crop V	오 또 오 오 essa
<ul> <li>a but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>a but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>b but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>a but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>b but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>b but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>b but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> <li>c but the tell de box that is side.</li> </ul>	
	II Notes 🖵 Comments

### Include transitions and animations for engaging content

When you start your presentation, the slides will display full screen by default. Each slide can include a transition that will be used when that slide appears and they are grouped into categories on the Transitions ribbon tab. Flashing from one slide to the next can get repetitive and boring, so adding transitions keeps the presentation flowing and keeps audiences more engaged. Experiment with adding some transitions and keep in mind the theme of the presentation as you work.

One transition that can really add style is Morph, which uses the previous slide as a transition to show how the slides change from one to the next.



Animations are another great way to add dynamic content to a slide. Animations add effects like motion and emphasis to objects that you have created. These can be created in a way that you only display content as it is discussed so audiences are aware of the current information.

Presentation (1) - Power	Point					
File Home I	nsert Draw D	esign Transit	ions Animation	ions Properties	Review V	iew Shape Colour Properties
1 Nationa to Foundford	Emphasis Effects Basic					
C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Fill Colour	Font Colour	Grow/Shrink	Line Colour	Spin	. It's easy to ma
3	Transparency Subtle					
4	Bold Flash	Brush Colour	Complement	Complement	Contrasting	square and
5	Darken	Desaturate	Lighten	Object Colour	Pulse	e and
6 2*	Moderate					Paster Formulting 1
	37	*	*	X		

# Edit and markup documents and contracts in Word

Microsoft Word allows you to open and edit documents with ink markup and share documents for simultaneous authoring with team members.

#### Creating copies of documents and accessing version history

Saving files to cloud is a great way to make sure you can access your files from any device. Along with that, OneDrive files will automatically save your changes as you work. If you want to branch off from a current document you will need to create a copy of it first.

Use the File tab on the ribbon in Office to access the Save option. This allows you to Save the document as a copy of the original. From that point forward any changes you make will be automatically saved to the new document you created. The new file can be saved with a new name and/or a different location if you choose.





Also located on the File tab is the History option which allows you to revert changes that have been made in the document to a previously saved version of that document. This is useful for shared documents that several people might be editing. If someone makes unintended changes to the document, the version history can restore it back to the way it was before their changes.

Don't rely on version history to save every change, if you aren't sure if you will want to save your changes, create a copy of the document first.

#### Use shared documents with meeting participants to work together

More and more often we are called upon to create and edit documents as a team - everything from marketing material to meeting agendas to technical documentation. Instead of sending the document back and forth via email where only one person can work at a time, use the power of Microsoft Surface Hub and OneDrive. With OneDrive, you can invite others to work on documents simultaneously and in real-time from any device.



To use the Share feature, save the document to your OneDrive first. Then open Share and type the name of the person in your organization that you want to give access to the file. They will receive a link that they can use to open the file on their device and start working at the same time.

#### Make decisions faster and edit content inline

Microsoft Word on Surface Hub is great for displaying documents on the large screen and discussing edits with your team. Use the tools on the ribbon to make changes to the live document by inserting images and text boxes.

Do	curnent (1) - Wor	rd											
										Document (1)			
Fil	e Home	Insert	Draw Lay	out Review	View								
C	Blank Page	Table	Pictures	Shapes	Text Box	3D Models	95 Link	¢⊐ Comment	🖹 Header & Footer	Page Number	TT Equation	ab Footnote	C Endnote

Use the ink tools to mark up a document or contract and add comments or notes for adjustment. If you are a student you can take notes, and highlight text right on the screen.



Selecting text on the page provides a context menu with options for the selection. Use this to make changes faster or copy and paste text from one part of the document to another.

Select text or objects on the page to display options for the selection									
	Ô	~	Select All	Smart Look-up	New Comment	)			

# Using Surface Hub apps for collaboration

Microsoft Surface Hub includes other apps that provide useful features for a variety of real-life business cases and mastering these apps can prove beneficial in many situations. The two apps that we will focus on in this section are Maps and Photos, which you find in the Start menu, under All apps.

### Use Maps to plan logistics and get information or directions

Microsoft Maps is a great app for looking at locations and planning directions and logistics for project teams. Facilities teams, security, fire and safety, and more use 2D and 3D maps with aerial view to scan locations, make ink annotations and share information.



The ink tools built into Maps allows you to draw, measure distance, and get turn-by-turn directions from point A to point B by just drawing a line.

For global organizations, it can be a valuable tool to plan locations and regional coverage.



## Use Photos to access screenshots and work with images and ink

You can use Photos on Surface Hub to edit, crop, and draw right on pictures or screenshots. Pictures can be loaded from OneDrive or captured from the screen.



Use the editing tools to Crop and Rotate, add a custom filter, or modify the brightness and contrast of the picture. You can save the new picture as a copy as well.



Use the Drawing tools to add ink, pencil, or pen to the picture and mark up locations or make notes and instructions for training. There are so many possibilities for creative teams to start working together on the large screen.



Maps and Photos are just two of the ways that Surface Hub helps all kinds of teams work smarter.

# Business apps designed for a large screen

Business needs are constantly changing and staying up-to-date on the latest information is key. Surface Hub is a platform for amazing large screen apps that change how information is presented, analyzed, and processed. There are many apps available for Surface Hub and many more that businesses use every day on their own devices.

### View Power BI dashboards and reports on Surface Hub

Microsoft Power BI is a powerful tool for data analytics, and it comes included in Windows on Surface Hub.

	Power BI	Ri	etail Channel Performance		∠ \$ ± ?	•
=	RETAIL CHANNEL PERFORMANCE				(+) Add widget	) Share
	Ask a question about the data on t	his dashboard	How to ask			
	Total amount INVOICED	Gross Profit Margin	COGS	Transaction total NON-POSTED	Quantity	
	8.08M	3.67M	4.15M	9.36M	101.99K	
	Transaction total, Transaction count, Q BY MONTH/YEAR	uantity	Total amount By OPERATING UNIT NAME, STATE		Average of Transaction total NON-POSTED	
	3,500 3,000 400 400 400 400 400 400 400	Month/Near 12/2015 2/2015 2/2015 2/2015 2/2015 3/2015 5/2015 6/2015 6/2015 8/2015 8/2015 9/2015 9/2015	Ceorgetown Burling	Att_         Los_         Ca         Au         Bet_           NU         MA         MA         MA         MA         MA           HO         Ch         Att         Cin         ML         ML           TX         L         GA         Oct.         Cot         ML           trik         Oak Br         Tyrc         Cott         Lon         Lon           tphia         L         VA         CA         CO         Cott         Lon	4.45K	
	1,500 0.5M 1.0M Transaction 1	0 10/2015 0 11/2015 1.5M 0 12/2015 total	Nice Columi San Dir Seattle	spin carbon spin spin spin spin spin spin spin spi	84.94	
	Total amount BY STATE		Total amount, COGS, Gross Profit Marg BY MONTH/YEAR	gin	Total amount BY CATEGORY LEVEL 1	
	• AME	RICA	1M 0M 10 <sup>01</sup> 10 <sup>11</sup> 10 <sup></sup>	Total amount     COSS     Gross Profit Margin     Official Construction	Category	ê 2
R	• •		Quantity BY EMPLOYEE NAME		Payment amount BY PAYMENT METHOD	

In Power BI, you can use presentation mode to display reports and dashboards in full-screen on Windows 10 devices and Surface Hub.

Presentation mode is useful for displaying Power BI at a meeting or conference on a Surface Hub, or on a dedicated projector in an office, or even just for maximizing space on a small screen.

In presentation mode in the Power BI app for Surface Hub, all the "chrome" such as the navigation and menu bars are removed to allow you and your team members focus on the data in your report. A toolbar with actions will become available for you and enable you to interact and collaborate with your data while in presentation mode.



## View and edit spreadsheets with Excel

Microsoft Excel is another app used across industries and departments to track and store all kinds of data and perform complex calculations on data.

Book -	5xel																		e 5
								Book											
File	Home I	Insert Draw F	ormulas Data	Review View	Table													0 5	ି 付 🖻 Share
21	Ž↓ Ž⊽	"퀵 Show,Detail ~ 객	Hide Detail																
$f_X$	647386																		~
				C		D		E	F	0	5	н	1	J	К	L	м	N	0
1																			
2																			
3			C	ompany		Clear Fil Au 21 Sales	utoFill 🔎	Resize Table											
4	just a tap.		A.	. Datum Corpora	tion i	E 647,	386												
5			A	dventure Works	3	E 683,	658												
6			BI	lue Yonder Airlin	es 🖓	E 778,	467 0												
7			Ci	ity Power & Ligh	t i	E 85,	957												
8			Ta	ailspin Toys	3	£	786												
9			To	otal															
10	-						r.,												
11																			
12																			
13																			
14																			
15																			
16																			
17																			
18																			
20																			
21	Start	1. Formulas	2. Comments	3. Tell Me	Learn More	+												5	ium : £2,196,254

Use the intuitive touch controls to build formulas in your worksheets.

Best - Dott											
				ânea							
File Horse Hoat Claw	Formula	Dato Review View 1	itie:							0.5	C d share
Streets    mare	- Andrews	Steel lass 🔍 Zoom in	Q Zoon Det   21 Him Hom								
fa .		_								~ P	
SUM WERKOE COUNT		The Ins	ert Form	ula button al	lows	you to	£	r	G	н	1
I Financial	300	duid du la	wild a faw	mula in Has a	increa	uk call					
Logical	<b>_</b>	quickiye	una a tor	maia in the c	urre	nt cell					
E we	- Se. 1	_									
E Dute & Time	30			Adventure Works	£	683,658					
100kie & Relevence	140	the second		Blue Yonder Airlines	£	778,467					
E. Mate a line	130	select () + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +		City Power & Light	£	85,957					
EL manufa	1	putug		Tailspin Toys	6	785					
				Total	-						
LX Ingrenning	1										
La whometer	1	d		)							
Cry thatsbare	*										
Compatibility	2										
Azure Mathine Loaning	2										
74											
13											
10											
10											
19											
20											
Start L.Formulas	20	Comments 3, Tell Me	Learn Mane +								

Selecting cells allows you to perform all the standard functions, including autofill for faster calculations.



## Access and edit Murals with Surface Hub

Mural is a canvas for ideas and projects that many people can work on together to speed up development time.



Use a myriad of tools including ink, shapes, and sticky notes to outline a project flow or idea map and get everyone's input in one place.

Anonymous voting allows feedback to be honest and move projects ahead faster.

## Connect to a PC for access to line of business applications

There are thousands of applications that businesses use every day on workstations, PCs, laptops and more. With Miracast and wireless projection, Surface Hub can be used as the perfect large screen interactive display for any application your organization uses.



Even if your line-of-business applications weren't built with Surface Hub in mind, you can still use Surface Hub to display them and work with them in real-time on the large screen.

This is even more important in application development, when many people need to weigh in on design principles and outcomes.

## Try your apps on Surface Hub

What applications do you use every day? Try them out on Surface Hub and imagine how much you can get done when everyone can view, contribute ideas, and work together.

## Let's Review

In this lesson, you learned how to:

- Build dynamic PowerPoint presentations and use markup to make presentations engaging
- Edit and markup documents and contracts in Word
- Use Surface Hub apps in new ways
- Utilize line-of-business apps designed for the large screen

# 3. Work with Teams to access content anywhere

## Lesson Objectives

After completing this lesson, you will be able to:

- Define project workflows in Microsoft Teams and implement collaboration best practices
- Perform basic Surface Hub troubleshooting to keep meetings moving forward

## **Project workflows in Teams**

Microsoft Teams makes collaboration easy and helps your organization get work done smarter and faster with features like group chat with shared files, channel tabs for documents and apps, video calls and screen presentation, and a built-in meeting whiteboard. Its important to spend some time analyzing how your team works and think about how you might leverage the tools in Microsoft Teams across devices, including Surface Hub, to get work done.

لي Activity	Search	Q 🛛	📄 2017 N	lew Range Team > General ····	
, <mark>≕</mark> Chat	Favorites		Conversations F	iles Wiki Planner PowerPoint Trello + Jabek Shammas 2:10 PM Emilie, the new designs are in for the 2017 line. The presentation to our warehouse contacts is this Friday so	^
Teams	General		,	we need to make sure it's as tight as possible. Can you get the last four settled before we go forward?	
Meetings	Launch Designers			Kadji Bell -210 PM Just saw this presentation and I think we may need to get Rob and Johanna in on it. After we decide on final designs can we align on next steps? We need to make sure we're meeting our deadlines to keep production on time.	
Files	Production Schedule			Babek Shammas 2:10 PM Here's the previous round Johanna. Let me know if you need anything else!	
	Marketing & Social Testers			И сору2 dincx Р 2 Dexign2 ppt	
	Creative Studio Team				
			<b>.</b>	Janielle Morrison 2:10 PM The deadline has been pushed back.	
				Kadji Bell 2:15 PM I was just told they narrowed it down to Design 1 and Design 2.	
				) Reply	
			⊖⁺ Er	nilie Fialova added You to the team.	
			Colored Col	Micael Madrid 2:17 PM 0 Hola You!	
:0:				⊃ Reply	~
Feedback				Start a new conversation	
<b>@</b>	č⊖ <sup>+</sup> Add team		A		

## Project management in Microsoft Teams and Surface Hub

Teams is built for project management, with central file storage in the cloud, threaded group conversations with history, and recordable channel meetings to keep everyone on the same page. Surface Hub is an extension of that capability and provides a focal point for team meetings, high-quality video conferencing, and an intuitive touch interface for working with a whiteboard and apps anywhere.

Most projects are executed in phases and its important to map out how those phases will progress to project completion.

Kick off a project with a team meeting that brings all the sponsors and stakeholders into the same video call on Surface Hub and present a Whiteboard to sketch out the deliverables. Get feedback from the team right from the beginning to make sure the project starts out on the right path.

¢				A Joe Dalecki (8)
Pro	jec+	Kickot	ff	_
Annual Func	Iraiser	¥E∨	ent	(11/17)
Pick a ch	narity	(9/1)		
Build a -	team-	Tom(9/?	30)	
Design post	ers-Stev	ve & J	essica	(10/14)
			⊞ " ୯	

As the project moves forward, use Teams as a knowledge base and information sharing tool.

Use tabs for quick access to commonly used sites and documents so the whole team can find the information they need quickly.



Map your traditional workflows to Teams:

Email => Group chat and conversations Attachments => Shared files and tabs Conference room => Video calls Projector => Present screen Dry erase board => Microsoft Whiteboard Track changes => Co-authoring shared files

There are many ways to use Teams as a communication hub. And there can be a lot of information flowing between individuals and groups at any given time. Its important to know how to make sure someone sees information that is specifically meant for them. One of the best ways to do that in Teams is to use tags.



Use the @ sign to mention people, channels, and teams to highlight their name and get their attention.

### Work with files in Teams and access files on Surface Hub

Now that the project is in full swing, its time to start managing all the files that are needed and created during the project. Some may be reference material and others may be getting published to a large audience.

With Surface Hub, it's not as important where meetings take place, you can work anywhere and meet anywhere. As long as your files are in Teams or OneDrive you access them from any computer or Surface Hub.

< >	Ľ		Search or type a command	-	o x
Activity E Chat	Favorites #TeamsforaCause ···· General	Conve	#TeamsforaCause > General ···· sations <u>Files</u> Wiki Logo Sketches Donation Sheet 3 more ~ +		Public
Teams	Outreach Sessions and Notes Social media Teams reference	1	ieneral lew 🚯 Upload $ \mathscr{O} $ Get link $ + $ Add cloud storage 🔹 Open in SharePoint		
Volunteer info	~	Type     Name     Modified ▼     Modified by       Email Messages     9/12/18     SharePoint App			
			St. Jude agreements     9/12/18     John Smith       Image: St. Jude agreements     9/12/18     John Smith       Image: St. Jude agreements     10/2/18     John Smith		
			Image: DonationSheet.xlsx     9/12/18     John Smith       Image: DonationSheet.xlsx     9/12/18     John Smith       Image: DonationSheet.xlsx     9/10/18     Stacy Harrison		
~			Logo Sketches 9/10/18 Stacy Harrison		
Store .'Ċ. Feedback	ిది <sup>*</sup> Join or create a team @				

Files can also be set as a tab in a channel for viewing and editing by the whole team.



#### Access content from any device and take meetings anywhere

Walk through a typical project for your team from start to finish and take note of how your team can leverage the ability to meet anywhere using Surface Hub to create content and hone ideas.



Remember that the best way to access your content on Surface Hub is to Sign in with Office 365. Then you can use your meeting calendar, OneDrive files, and Office 365 portal for Teams, OneNote, and more all from the large touch screen. With Surface Hub on a rolling stand, take your meeting and content anywhere in the office.

# **Basic Surface Hub troubleshooting**

As with all technology, even if we do everything the right way, sometimes things don't quite work as we expect them to. Its important to understand when things aren't working how to fix it. Resolving common issues with Surface Hub is straightforward and the tasks are easy for most end users to perform.

#### Use autosave to ensure work is kept up-to-date

The first rule of working with any technology is that you should almost always save your work regularly as you go to minimize the impact of something unforeseen happening or the device stops working as expected.

If you have run into an issue with Surface Hub and you aren't sure what steps to take next, before you try any problem solving or troubleshooting steps, make sure you have saved all of you work and know where to go to get it back. Contact your support team if you are unsure how to save your work as you go.

Saving your work is now easier thanks to Office 365 and Microsoft OneDrive. Sign in to Office 365 on Surface Hub to access and save files to OneDrive in the cloud. As you work, your changes will be saved automatically. If something unexpected happens you have the peace of mind that your work is still saved.

## Closing and relaunching apps on Surface Hub

The most common issue that end users experience is that an app they are using is not performing as expected, either with touch, or pen input and may be unresponsive to commands. To close a restart an app that has these issues, select Task View from the bottom of the screen and then close the app by pressing the X for that app. You can then relaunch the app from the Start menu and resume working.



## End and restart the session

If closing unneeded apps and restarting apps hasn't fixed the issue, then the next step to try is to end the session and restart your session. Pressing End Session means that you will definitely lose any work you have not saved, so be certain that you have saved your work if possible before pressing End Session.



Once the Welcome screen appears you can rejoin a meeting, sign into Office 365, or open any apps you were using in your session.

## Restarting Windows 10 on Surface Hub

There may be times that require a restart of Windows on Surface Hub in order to relaunch a session. If ending the session hasn't fixed the issue, then the next step is try a restart.

In the bottom right corner of the screen is the options menu ^ with a button for Restart. Keep in mind that there is no 10 second countdown. When you press Restart Now, the onboard PC will perform a restart and come back to the Welcome screen.

Restart									
	Restart now								
Be sure to save your work.									
с	<b>4</b> 1)			Φ					
Do not disturb	Volume			Restart					
ጉ ጉ									
Ease of Access									
	•	^	Ę	1:03 PM					

## Power down and reboot Surface Hub

If a restart has not solved the problem, you may need to completely power off the Surface Hub and power it back on again. To perform a full power-cycle of the device, press the power button on the bottom right of the device then disconnect the power and the battery (if connected), wait 10 seconds, then apply power again to the device. This will cause the device to completely power off and power back on. It will start up and come up to the Welcome screen when it is ready.

## Check network and service connectivity from Surface Hub

Surface Hub requires a connection to the internet, and local or cloud services in order to work properly. If there are issues with this connectivity you may get a warning notification message.

You can check to make sure the device is connected to the internet by opening the Edge browser and navigating to a website. If no websites are loading, there is most likely a problem with the device's internet connection somewhere between the device and the outside connection from your organization. There are a number of things that could impact the network connectivity of the device, so check with your Network or System administrator to determine the cause and solutions for the issue.

Surface Hub also requires a connection to Exchange for meeting calendar sync and sending email from Office 365 and Whiteboard. You can test this by inviting the device account to a meeting and also by trying to send an email from one of the Office apps or the Whiteboard. If the device is not connected to Exchange, it will not be able to update its calendar or send emails. Work with your organization's Exchange administrator to troubleshoot the connection.

Surface Hub connects to either Skype for Business, Teams or both to make and receive calls and join scheduled meetings. If the device is unable to make Skype or Teams calls, or join meetings than the connection to those services has probably been interrupted. Work with your organization's Skype or Teams administrator to troubleshoot the connection.

# Let's Review

In this lesson, you learned how to:

- Define project workflows in Microsoft Teams and implement collaboration best practices
- Perform basic Surface Hub troubleshooting to keep meetings moving forward